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Permission to reproduce material from 
this presentation is granted only if the 

following citation is added: 
 

Used with permission by John Whatley. 
Ȱ'ÒÁÖÅÓ -ÏÕÎÔÁÉÎ (ÉÓÔÏÒÙȟ 'ÅÏÌÏÇÙȟ 

-ÉÎÅÒÁÌÓ ÁÎÄ -ÉÃÒÏÍÉÎÅÒÁÌÓȱ ɉΨΦΧέɊȢ !ÉËÅÎ 
Gem, Mineral and Fossil Society 

<www.aikengmfs.org>. 



This presentation describes the most important and interesting 
mineral species that have been found at Graves Mountain. 
 
It is not intended to be a formal scientific paper. While it includes 
Á ÂÒÉÅÆ ÏÖÅÒÖÉÅ× ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ÍÉÎÅȭÓ ÍÉÎÅÒÁÌÏÇÙȟ ÍÙ ÐÒÉÍÁÒÙ ÆÏÃÕÓ ÉÓ ÔÏ 
provide information for collectors and micromounters. 
 
The verbalized chemical formulas are the interpretation of the 
author. 
 
Graves Mountain minerals without photographs are mentioned 
at the end of this document before the References.. 



 
Many people deserve credit for the mineral photographs, including Julian Gray, 
Sugar and Bob White, Joey Smith, Henry Barwood, and Shellie Newell. Tom Fales 
digitized many of the slides. 
 
Specimens photographed are from the collections of John Whatley and Don 
Reems, except where noted. 
 
Geraldine Vest of Venice, Florida typed the original descriptive document written 
by John Whatley. 
 
Sincere thanks go to Combustion Engineering Minerals, Asea Brown Bovari and 
property caretaker Clarence Norman Junior for allowing us many years of 
enjoying the Graves Mountain mine and its minerals. 
 
Design and preparation of this presentation was created by Shellie T. Newell.  
Edited by  Barbara Fenstermacher and Vincent Broderick.  Graves Mountain Mine 
photos (taken July 2017) are by Shellie, also. 



 
History and 
Description of 
Graves Mountain 

References: 

Cook (1985) and Santamaria (2003ɀ2004) 



 
Graves Mountain is 
located about 5 miles 
SW of Lincolnton in 
Lincoln County, 
Georgia on the south 
side of US Highway 
378, roughly 40 miles 
northwest of 
Augusta 

 

Source: United States Geological Survey (Aonia 7-ΧȾΪȭ 
quadrangle, contour interval 10 feet)  



Originally called Lloyds Mountain, it was renamed Graves 
Mountain after a prominent area landowner, John Temple 
Graves. 
 
)Ô ÐÒÏÂÁÂÌÙ ÓÔÁÎÄÓ ÁÌÏÎÅ ÁÓ 'ÅÏÒÇÉÁȭÓ ÆÉÎÅÓÔ ÍÉÎÅÒÁÌ ÌÏÃÁÔÉÏÎ ÉÎ 
terms of world-class specimens. It is one of the most heavily 
visited collecting locations in the Southeast at this time. 
 
Charles U. Shepard published the first scientific paper about this 
site in 1859. George F. Kunz (1856ɀ1932), who once co-owned the 
rutile -producing saddle area of the mountain, stated in 1892 that 
by then $20,000 worth of rutile specimens had been distributed 
to collections throughout the world.  



Mineralogical investigations, mostly German, were conducted on 
Graves Mountain rutile and lazulite until around 1900. 
 
In 1959, the first detailed survey and mapping was presented by 
Vernon Hurst (Georgia Geological Survey Bulletin, #68). 
 
The mountain actually consists of three hills, two of which stood 
over 400 feet above the surrounding countryside. Prior to 
mining, the highest point was 273 m (895.7 feet) above sea level. 
Mining has reduced the two prominent peaks to approximately 
200 feet lower than their former heights. 



The extensively mined west mountain is now the main mine pit. 
The Eastern-most pit also has been heavily mined and is still 
producing interesting mineral specimens, primarily iridescent 
hematite.  
 
4ÏÄÁÙȭÓ ÈÉÇÈÅÓÔ ÐÏÉÎÔ ÉÓ ÐÁÒÔ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ %ÁÓÔ -ÏÕÎÔÁÉÎȢ -ÕÃÈ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ 
ÆÁÍÏÕÓ ȰÓÁÄÄÌÅȟȱ Á ÆÏÒÍÅÒ ÓÏÕÒÃÅ ÏÆ ÆÉÎÅ ÒÕÔÉÌÅ ÃÒÙÓÔÁÌÓ ÌÏÃÁÔÅÄ 
between the East and West mountains, has been largely mined 
away. 
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